
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
August 24-25, 2023 

Basalt, Colorado 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, August 24  
Meeting Location: The Arts Campus at Willits (TACAW), 400 Robinson St 
 
2:00 pm Call to Order and Introductions 
  Jonathan Godes, CAST President 
 
2:10  Law Enforcement Liability: How public sentiment & Colorado laws are challenging   
  police departments 

Tami Tanoue, Executive Director, CIRSA 
Sam Light, Deputy Executive Director/General Counsel, CIRSA 
Brian Olson, Chief of Police, Town of Snowmass Village 
Kim Ferber, Chief of Police, City of Aspen  

 
3:25   Colorado’s Destination Stewardship Strategic Plan 
  Jill Corbin, Deputy Director, Destination Stewardship, Colorado Tourism Office 

 
4:15 Adjourn 
 
6:00-9:00 Reception and Dinner – The Arts Campus at Willits (TACAW) 

Reception sponsored by CIRSA 
 

Friday, August 25  
Meeting Location: The Arts Campus at Willits (TACAW), 400 Robinson St 
 
8:00 a.m. Breakfast hosted by Town of Basalt 
 
8:30 Call to Order & Introductions  

Jonathan Godes, CAST President 



 

 

 
8:35 Welcome to Basalt 

Mayor Bill Kane 
 
8:45   Sustainability & Net Zero Building 

Ryan Honey, Executive Director, The Arts Campus at Willits (TACAW)  
Auden Schendler, Senior Vice President of Sustainability, Aspen Skiing Company 
    

9:45   First and Last Mile Mobility 
  Ryan Mahoney , Manager, Town of Basalt 
  Mirte Mallory, Co-Founder & Executive Director, WE-cycle 
  Travis Gleason, Basalt Connect Micro Transit & Downtowner LLC 
   
10:20 Break 
 
10:40  Hot Topics Roundtable 
 An open discussion where CAST members highlight their most critical issues 
 
11:40 New Business & Updates  

 Approval of March 2, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 Approval of Fourth Restated & Amended Bylaws 

 Approval of 2024 Dues Increase 

 Upcoming CAST Meetings 
 
Noon  Adjourn    
 

 
 

Informal group mountain bike ride following adjournment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAST ATTENDEE LIST: Basalt Meeting

August 24-25, 2023

Thurs., 8/24 Thurs., 8/24 Fri., 8/25

 First Name Last Name Title Jurisdiction Meeting Dinner Dinner Guest Meeting

Andrew Aerenson Councilmember Frisco 1 1 1

Bill Almquist Community Devel. Director  Salida 1 1

Ian Billick Mayor Crested Butte 1 1 1

Ben Bohmfalk Mayor Carbondale 1 1 1

Michael Brack Town Manager Fraser 1 1 1

Ashley Brubaker Sustainability Coordinator Summit County 1 1 1

Jessika Buell Mayor Pro-Tem Durango 1 1 1

Marie Cenac Mayor Pro Tem Estes Park 1 1 Jeff Woelfle 1

Justin Critelli Mayor Pro tem Salida 1 1 Melanie Critelli 1

Ryan Dickey Council Member Park City, Utah 1 1 1

Zoe Dohnal Deputy Town Manager Telluride 1 1 1

Christy Doon Assist. City Administrator  Salida 1 1 1

John Doyle City Council Aspen 1 1 1

Tom Fisher Town Manager Frisco 1 1 Sheri Fisher 1

Russ Forrest Town Manager Vail 1 1 1

Jonnah Glassman Council Member  Silverthorne 1 1 1

Jonathan Godes Councilor Glenwood Springs 1 1 1

Lewis Gregory Trustee Fraser 1 1 1

Ward Hauenstein City Councilor Aspen 1 1 1

Shannon Haynes Deputy Town Manager  Breckenridge 1 1 Peter Haynes 1

Michelle Haynes Assistant Town Manager Mountain Village 1 1 1

Eric Heil Town Manager  Avon 1 1 1

Rick Holman Town Manager  Breckenridge 1 1 Holly LaTour 1

Elyse Hottel Council Member  Basalt 1 1 1

Ryan Hyland Town Manager  Silverthorne 1 1 1

Nathan Johnson Town Manager Dillon 1 1 1

Rebecca Kaufman Town Council Member  Winter Park 1 1 1

Lani Kitching  Trustee Carbondale 1

Colin Laird Town Trustee Carbondale 1 1 1

Greg LeBlanc Asst. Town Manager Snowmass Village 1 1 1

Dara MacDonald Town Manager Crested Butte 1 1 1

Ryan Mahoney Town Manager  Basalt 1 1 David Knight 1

Eric Mamula Mayor  Breckenridge 1 1 1

Bob McLaurin Honorary Member 1 1

Sara Ott City Manager  Aspen 1 1 1

Kelly Owens Mayor Pro Tem  Breckenridge 1 1 1

Amy Phillips Mayor  Avon 1 1 1

Matt Pielsticker Planning Director  Avon 1 1 1

Greg Poschman County Commissioner Aspen/Pitkin County 1

Todd Rankin Council Member  Breckenridge 1 1 Barb Rankin 1

Scott Robson Town Manager Telluride 1 1 1

Sam Rose City Councilor  Aspen 1

Dave Rossi Communications Director Summit County 1 1 1

Carol Saade Council Member  Breckenridge 1 1 1

Jim Schmidt Honorary Member 1 Ruth Carver

Dan Shore Mayor Salida 1 1 1

Peter Siegel Executive Director Copper Mountain Resort Assoc. 1

Anton Sinkewich Community Development Dir  Gunnison 1 1 1

Carolyn Skowyra Mayor Dillon 1 1 1

Heather Sloop City Council pro tem Steamboat Springs 1 1 1

Katie Soles Trustee Fraser 1 1 1

Ruth Stanley Council Member  Avon 1 1 1

Jane Templeton city council member Salida 1 1 1

Melissa Turley Executive Director Teton Village Association 1 1 1

Mitchell Weimer Councillor Glenwood Springs 1 1

Sarah Wilkinson Special Projects Manager Summit County 1 1 1

J.D. Wise Economic Development & Su Mountain Village 1 1 1

Paul Wisor Town Manager Mountain Village 1 1 1

Jenny Wood Assist.County Manager Summit County 1 1 1

Erin Zalinski City Councilor Glenwood Springs 1 1



Torre Mayor  Aspen 1 1 1

Thurs., 8/24 Thurs., 8/24 Fri., 8/25

Speakers/Guests/Staff Meeting Dinner Dinner Guest Meeting

Bill Kane Mayor Basalt  1

Margaret Bowes Executive Director CAST 1 1 1

Tami Tanoue Executive Director CIRSA 1 1

Sam Light Deputy Executive Director/GeCIRSA 1 1

Brian Olson Chief of Police Snowmass Village 1

Kim Ferber Chief of Police Aspen 1

Jill Corbin Deptuty Director CO Tourism Office 1

Ryan Honey Executive Director TACAW 1

Auden Schendler Senior VP, Sustainability Aspen Skiing Company 1

Mirte Mallory Co-Founder, Exec. Dir. WE-cycle 1

Travis Gleason Owner Basalt Connect 1

Kate McIntire Northern Mountains Regiona Department of Local Affairs 1

Chantal Unfug Director, Division of Local GovDepartment of Local Affairs 1

Janeth Stancle Northwest Regional Director Sen. Hickenlooper's Offic 1 1 1

Julie Sutor Rep. Neguse's Office 1 1

Abbie Callahan Rep. Neguse's Office 1 1

63 67 7 63



 
 

ANNUAL LEGISLATIVE MEETING  
 MINUTES 

March 2, 2023 
Denver, Colorado 

 
 

I. Call to Order and Introductions 
Jonathan Godes, CAST President 

 
II. Keynote Address:  Governor Jared Polis  

The Governor wants Coloradoans to be able to live where they work. Any housing solutions need to address 
regional realities and needs. He expressed appreciation for CAST leaders who are working with the Governor’s 
team to think through the administration’s desire to increase the housing stock and consider changes to land 
use codes to facilitate affordable housing. There is a nexus of housing policy with transportation, climate 
policy, health care and economic development. Locals know the local challenges and the Governor is looking 
forward to working with CAST communities. Transit needs to be considered alongside housing development. 
The State has climate goals and water is a large concern.  The Governor stated that he understands that 
different regions need different AMI criteria.   
 
CAST thanked the Governor for bringing the housing issue to the forefront. Members stressed that land use 
policy needs to look different in different areas of the state. In mountain communities, we want to increase 
housing stock but also need to ensure that those units house residents and not short term renters.  
 

III. Economic Update  
 Brian Lewandowski, Executive Director, Business Research Division, Leeds School of Business 
 University of Colorado Boulder 
The Colorado Business Economic Outlook is created annually. The national economy is showing mixed signals 
indicating a slight recession or slow growth. The inflation rate is still high but declining. Colorado ranks fairly 
high compared to other states in a variety of metrics.  The greatest demand for workers in Colorado is in 
Tourism.  Resort counties have rebounded in employment figures compared to other counties. It is the same 
at the state level where Colorado has recovered tourism jobs and most states have not. Residential building 
permits in ski towns were down in 2022 compared to 2021.  
 
Regarding rent control, economists generally say rent control is not good, however our current real estate 
appreciation is not sustainable. It is understandable why rent control is being explored.  Continued strong 
growth is anticipated in 2023 with slower growth in 2024.  Tourism-based counties will see a delayed “soft 
landing” compared to non-tourism counties. 
 
IV. Legislative Update  
 Heather Stauffer, Legislative Advocacy Manager, Colorado Municipal League 
A land use and housing proposal from the Governor is expected in the next two weeks.  Planning and 
statewide land use codes are expected. Mutli-family development on residential lots and ADUs will also be 



addressed.  Growth limits will be addressed but probably in a separate bill.  CML has some concerns but is 
hoping for a collaborative effort with the Governor. 
 
Wildland Urban Interface:  Local governments would be required to adopt these statewide codes and a board 
would determine the WUI zone. Local governments could appeal to WUI Board to deviate from a statewide 
code. CML is opposed unless amended 
Prop 123: CML would like to see some updates to and there will be some clean up legislation this session. The 
Governor is not supportive of a change to AMI.   The 3% increase in housing per year would ideally be 
averaged over a three or five year period.   
Right of First Refusal for Local Govs to Create Affordable Housing: Local governments will be able to opt out. 
Support if amended position.  
Insurance and Under Insurance bills will place more transparency around policies.   
There are several disability bills that CML has concerns about, including housing.  All of these increase liability 
and costs to local governments. They are working with sponsors.  
HB1061: Alcohol permit. Increases the number of days per year alcohol can be served.  CML Supports. 
HB1169: Limits arrests lor low level offenses. CML Opposes. 
SB 97: Motor vehicle theft.  Would increase to felony.  CML Supports 
HB 1091: Continuation of childcare tax credit.  CML is newly engaged in child care issues.  
SB 11: Public employees’ workplace .  CML Opposes.  
 
V. Population Matters, Trends and Transitions 
Cindy DeGroen, Senior Demographer, Colorado Demography Office 
Colorado has grown twice as fast as other U.S. states since the 70s. The slowing of population growth is mostly 
due to the aging of the state’s population. Most resort counties will see growth from natural factors of births 
vs deaths.  The migration trends are interesting. The state will be challenged to fill retirees’ jobs as well as new 
jobs. 11% of jobs can be done remotely compared to 5% before pandemic.   
 
VI. New State Housing Programs 
Alison George, Director, Division of Housing, DOLA 
Patrick Meyers, Chief Economic Recovery Officer, State of Colorado 
 
Allison George, Division of Housing:  The Division of Housing received $1.4B from Stimulus/Transformational 
Funding. The Transformational Programs (HB13778 and HB 1304) received 108 letters of interest, which is 
more than they can fund.  They are not expecting another round of letters of interest. They expect to have 
decisions between late March and May. The applicants are on the website. 
 
Proposition 123 Affordable Housing Support Fund was voted on by the citizens of Colorado. Local 
governments need to opt in by November 1.  The local government sets their own baseline and then commits 
to a 3% increase/year of affordable housing stock to qualify for the funds going forward. They will look at a 3 
year average based on permits not construction. A March 15 stakeholder meeting with Gary Ventures will 
include a local government discussion. The DOLA website will have a data set that shows figures for each 
county. The Division of Housing can approve a community’s affordability numbers if the figure can be justified. 
CAST members commented that Prop 123 set AMI at a level which is too low for CAST communities. 
HB22-1271 created a local officials Tool Kit and there is an online live web resource. 
 
Patrick Meyers, OEDIT: Mr. Meyers is implementing the OEDIT side of Prop 123 and is the interim chair for the 
Middle Income Housing Authority (MIHA).  60% of Prop 123 funds will go to OEDIT and OEDIT hired CHFA as 
the administrator. They are building guidelines with Gary Ventures, the authors of Prop 123. It will be 
important for CAST members to participate in stakeholder meetings. 



MIHA:  Under this program, the State will build, own, and operate rental housing.  MIHA was authorized by 
SB22-232 and funded by $1M. Rural resort AMI is 80%-140% but communities can request and justify higher 
AMIs. This is a pilot, so they have limited time to prove value to the legislature.  The application does need to 
show community support and local governments can veto a project.  Applications will be far more attractive if 
developers have already gotten agreement from the local government.  The local government can be the 
applicant. Developers are building it for a fee, and that fee must be less than the fee they would have gotten if 
it was a LITECH project. 
 
Manufactured Housing Program:  They have had lots of interest. Three grants have been awarded and they 
have 14 applications in process.   
 
A new P3 has mapped all the unused state land that might be donated to an authority or offered through a 
ground lease. 
 
VII.   New Business & Member Discussion 
Approval of January 2023 Minutes: Meeting minutes were approved unanimously.  
 
Outdoor Access Bill:  We all want to provide opportunities for disabled folks to recreate in our communities,  
but Summit County voiced great concern about this bill that has had little stakeholder engagement. Rep. Ortiz 
sponsored this bill. It will impact any local government that has outdoor recreation.  It would immediately 
mandate every ski lift would have to accommodate disabled access without any assistance.  Every trail would 
need to have disability access.  It would make any violation a civil rights violation.   
 
CIRSA:  Law enforcement liability premiums have increased in counties. Municipal government will be 
impacted next.   
 
Transportation:  Members discussed a desire to see legislation to address I-70 closures caused by CMVs.  Tools 
such as enforcing left lane law, Chain Law, and doing speed control are being discussed for Glenwood Canyon.  
The I-70 Coalition will request any action be applied to the entire I-70 mountain corridor. 
 
Eric Mamula, Breckenridge and Sara Ott, Aspen have been in conversation with the Governor’s Office about 
the pending land use and housing legislation.  CCI, CML, SDA, CAST and other local government groups met to 
see if there is a way to form a local government coalition to speak with one voice. Members are not sure that 
a statewide local government group will address our concerns, but CAST will work with this “coalition.” CAST 
communities already have great housing programs and will continue to implement them but need funding and 
support for infrastructure needs.  Giving developers the right to build more density in locations with no 
infrastructure does not work. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 



 

Page 1 of 18 

THIRD  FOURTH ourthRESTATED AND AMENDED  
 

BYLAWS 
 

OF 
 

COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS 
A Colorado Non-profit Corporation 

(Filing No. 19911084179) 
 

 
 COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS, (herein “CAST” or “corporation”) pursuant to 
Resolution approved by its Directors and Participating Members, hereby adopts the following THIRD 
FOURTH RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS.    
 
 These THIRD FOURTH RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS correctly set forth the 
provisions of the Bylaws of COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS, as amended, and 
supersede and replace the original Bylaws and all amendments thereto. 
 

WHEREAS, the COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS (CAST) is a Colorado Non-
profit Corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the date of filing of the Articles of Incorporation with the Colorado Secretary of 
State is October 21, 1991 as filing number 19911084179; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Articles have not been amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, CAST adopted its RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS on February 2, 2010; 
and 
 
WHEREAS,CAST adopted its SECOND RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS in 2012; 
and 
 
WHERAS, CAST adopted its THIRD RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS on June 23, 
2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, CAST adopted its FOURTH RESTATED AND AMENDED BYLAWS on August 
25, 2023; and 
 



 

Page 2 of 18 

WHEREAS, to the Directors and Participating Members desire to amend the Bylaws a fourth 
third time to clearly state that CAST is a Colorado non-profit corporation, and remove any 
provisions inconsistent with that fact; and 
 
WHEREAS, these Third Fourth Restated and Amended Bylaws contain amendments, which 
correctly set forth CAST’s form of entity _________ and that the amendments have been duly 
adopted by the Directors and Participating Members of CAST. 
 
 

NAME AND ORGANIZATIONAL AUTHORITY 
 
  Section 1: Name 

 The name of the Corporation shall be “COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS”, 
a Colorado Non-Profit Corporation (herein “CAST” or “corporation”); 

 
Section 2: Legal Organization. 
CAST was organized by certain individuals on behalf of certain political subdivisions of the 
State of Colorado, and others, pursuant to Colorado Revised Statutes, Articles 121 through 137 
of Title 7 (Colorado Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1998, as amended thereafter). 

 
   
ARTICLE 1:   GENERAL 
 

Section 1.  The following paragraphs contain provisions for the regulation and  management 
of COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS, a Colorado non-profit corporation. 

 
Section 2.  In the event that there is a conflict between a provision of these Restated and 
Amended Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation on file with the Colorado 
Secretary of State or any provision required, by law, then said provision of the Articles of 
Incorporation or law shall control. 

 
 
ARTICLE 2:  PERIOD OF DURATION 
 
 Section 1. The duration of CAST shall be perpetual. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3:  OBJECTS AND PURPOSES 
 
 Section 1. The objects and purposes of CAST shall be as follows: 

a) To foster cooperation among cities and towns immediately impacted by the skiing and 
tourism industry; 



 

Page 3 of 18 

b) To study the needs of and render services to member municipalities in respect to their 
relationship to the ski and tourism industry; 

c) To assist in securing legislative enactments beneficial to member municipalities and to 
oppose proposed and current legislation injurious thereto. 

    
 
 
ARTICLE 4:  POWERS 
 
 Section 1. CAST shall have all powers as provided to non-profit corporations as set forth in 

Colorado Revised Statutes, Sections 7-123-102 and 103, as amended from time to time. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5:   PLACE OF BUSINESS 

 
Section 1.  The principal office of this corporation and its principal place of business shall be 
the address of the Executive Director, currently: 
 Margaret Bowes, 169 Vail Cr, Dillon CO 80435  
 with mailing address of: 
 P.O. Box 3823, Dillon, CO 80435,  
 but this designation shall be without prejudice to the power and right of the corporation to 
conduct and transact any of its affairs or business in other cities, states, territories, countries or 
places. The principal office of the corporation and its principal place of business may be changed 
from time to time by the Executive Director or by the Directors. 

 
Section 2.  The registered office of the corporation shall be the same as described in Section 
1 above. 

 
Section 3.  The registered agent of the corporation at the above-designated registered office 
shall be the Executive Director, or such other person as the Executive Director or the Directors 
determine. 

 
Section 4.  The registered office and registered agent of the corporation may be changed from 
time to time in the manner prescribed by law without amending these Restated and Amended 
Bylaws. 

 
 
ARTICLE 6:   BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 

Section 1.  The corporation shall keep either within or without the State of Colorado, 
complete books and records of account and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board of 
Directors. 
 



 

Page 4 of 18 

Section 2.  The books, records of account, financial statements and other documents of the 
corporation shall be made available to such persons who have been designated by law as having 
a right thereto, and said books, records of account, financial statements and documents shall be 
made available to such persons in the manner and according to the procedure established by law. 

 
 
ARTICLE 7:   MEMBERS 
 

Section 1. Participating Members 
 Any incorporated rural resort town or city in the State of Colorado impacted by the skiing 
and tourism industry, and desiring to become a Participating Member of CASTST may apply in 
writing for consideration by the CAST Board of Directors. Participating Member communities 
are significantly impacted by the ski industry or are communities in which tourism is a 
significant driver of the local economy. , may do so upon signifying, in writing, its desire to do 
so.  The Board of Directors may from time to time provide additional qualifications for such 
Participating Members.  No membership certificates shall be issued. 
 
Section 2. Associate Members 
 Subsection A: 
 Any governmental entity or political subdivision of the State of Colorado, other than a 
city or town as described in Section 1 above, that is significantly impacted by the ski industry or 
where tourism is a significant driver of the local economy.  impacted by the skiing and tourism 
industry, may become an Associate Member of CAST upon written application and acceptance 
by the CAST Board of Directors, and payment of prescribed annual membership fees. 
 
 Subsection B: 
 Any incorporated city or town, governmental entity or political subdivision that is 
significantly impacted by the ski industry or where tourism is a significant driver of the local 
economy.  impacted by the skiing and tourism industry, which is located outside the State of 
Colorado, may become an Associate Member of CAST upon written application, payment of 
prescribed membership fees, and a favorable vote of the CAST board of directors a majority of 
the quorum of Participating Members voting at any duly called meeting.  Said application shall 
be submitted to the Executive Director no less than fourteen (14) days before the meeting of 
Participating Members at which the application is to be considered.   
 
 Subsection C: 
 Any non-profit corporation or association, organized either within or outside of the State 
of Colorado, that is significantly impacted by the ski industry or where tourism is a significant 
driver of the local economy.    impacted by the skiing and tourism industry, which operates 
inside or outside the State of Colorado, may become an Associate Member of CAST upon 
written application, payment of prescribed membership fees, and a favorable vote of the CAST 
Board of Directors. a majority of the quorum of Participating Members voting at any duly called 
meeting.  Said application shall be submitted to the Executive Director no less than fourteen (14) 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight



 

Page 5 of 18 

days before the meeting of Participating Members at which the application is to be considered.   
 
 Subsection D: 
 Any for-profit corporation or association, organized either within or outside of the State 
of Colorado, impacted by the skiing and tourism industry, which operates inside or outside the 
State of Colorado, may become an Associate Member of CAST upon application, payment of 
prescribed membership fees, and a favorable vote of a majority of the quorum at any duly called 
meeting of Participating Members voting at any duly called meeting.  Said application shall be 
submitted to the Executive Director no less than fourteen (14) days before the meeting of 
Participating Members at which the application is to be considered.   
 
 Subsection E: 
 No Associate Member shall be entitled to vote. 
 
 Subsection F: 
 No entity applying for Associate Membership shall have the right to be admitted as an 
Associate Member.  The Board of Directors may reject any application for Associate 
Membership, for any reason or for no reason. 
 
Section 3:  Honorary Members 
 Honorary membership may be conferred upon approval by a favorable vote of a majority 
of the quorum of the Participating Members voting at any duly called meeting. No Honorary 
Member shall be entitled to vote.  No membership fees shall be assessed for Honorary Members; 
 
Section 4. Designation of Voting Representatives and Contact Person 
 Subsection A:   
  For purposes of voting, each Participating Member shall designate two individuals, one 
of which shall be designated by the entity as the primary designee with authority to vote for the 
entity, and the other as alternate if the primary designee is not able to vote at a meeting. The 
designated persons may both be elected trustees or councilmembers of the entity, or one may be 
an elected trustee or councilmember and the other the non-elected chief administrator  designee 
of the entity. The Executive Director shall secure such designations from time to time, either in 
writing or orally as the Executive Director determines.  The designated voting representatives 
shall continue in such position unless and until a different person or persons are authorized by 
the Participating Member, and the Executive Director has received written notice from the 
Member of such change.  No person acting as a designated voting representative of a 
Participating Member may act as a designated voting representative of any other Participating 
Member. 
 
 Subsection B:   
 Although not entitled to vote, each Associate Member shall designate the individual 
authorized by the entity to be the contact person for such Associate Member.  This individual is 
not required to be an officer or elected official of the Associate Member.  The Executive Director 



 

Page 6 of 18 

shall secure such authorization from time to time, either in writing or orally as the Executive 
Director determines.  The designated contact person shall continue in such position unless and 
until a different person is authorized by the Associate Member, and the Executive Director 
receives written notice from the Associate Member of such change. 
 
Section 5. All members shall be entitled to attend Directors’ meetings (unless such 
 meeting is closed by a vote of the Directors then in attendance at the meeting).  No member shall 
be entitled to vote at any Directors’ meetings. 
 
Section 6: The Board of Directors may from time to time abolish existing, or establish 
additional, classes of members, including determining the criteria for membership in all such 
classes of members.   

 
Section 7: The Executive Director, with approval from the Board of Directors, shall prepare 
the forms of applications to be used by the different classes of members. 
 

 Section 8: Memberships are not transferable. 
 
 
ARTICLE 8:  MEMBERSHIP FEES 
 
 Section 1: Fee Schedule 

  The annual membership fee for each class of membership (except Honorary Members 
which are exempt from fees) shall be in such sum as shall be fixed from time to time at a regular 
or special meeting of Participating Members, upon the recommendation of the Board of 
Directors.  No change in the membership fee schedule shall be effective until so approved at a 
regular or special meeting of Participating Members. 

 
 Section 2: Payment of Membership Fees 

  All membership fees shall be payable annually in advance on or before May 1 of each 
year.  Any new members must pay the full annual fee at the time membership becomes effective.   
Failure to timely pay membership fees shall automatically cause the member to not be in good 
standing – disqualifying the member from voting on any matter - until such membership fees are 
paid. 

 
 Section 3: Termination of Membership  

  If a members has failed to pay the annual fee by May 1 of each year, or has failed to 
comply with any other requirements of CAST, such member’s membership may be terminated or 
suspended as decided by the Board of Directors after written notice is sent to such member at 
least fifteen (15) days prior to a special or regular meeting of the Directors (which notice shall 
state the location, date and time of the meeting, and setting forth the fees alleged to be unpaid or 
other cause for termination).   At such meeting, the member shall be given the opportunity to 
state (either in person or by written statements) its position regarding the alleged reasons for 



 

Page 7 of 18 

termination.  At such meeting the Board of Directors shall make a determination whether or not 
grounds exist for such termination, and if the termination shall become effective or not.  Such 
notice to the member of the alleged grounds and the hearing shall be given in writing, either 
delivered in person to the member entity, or mailed postage paid first class to the last address of 
the member as shown on the books and records of CAST.  Any proceeding challenging a 
termination or suspension, including a proceeding in which a defective notice is alleged, must be 
commenced within one year after the effective date of the termination or suspension.  Any 
membership so terminated or suspended shall result in the member’s continuing liability for any 
membership fees incurred prior to the date of such termination or suspension. 

 
 Section 4: Withdrawal 

  A member may withdraw its membership upon written notice to CAST, through its 
Executive Director.  No such withdrawal shall entitle the withdrawing member to a refund of any 
part or all of membership fees paid by the withdrawing member.    
 
Section 5: Variable Fees 
 The membership fees for each class of members may be different from other classes of 
members. 

 
 
ARTICLE 9: POWERS AND RIGHTS OF PARTICIPATING MEMBERS IN GOOD 

STANDING 
 
 Section 1: All Participating Members who are in good standing have the following powers 

exercisable at a meeting of Participating Members duly called: 
a. To elect Directors of CAST at the annual meetings of the Participating Members; 
b. To remove from office any Director or Officer, for good and sufficient cause; 
c. To hear, consider and approve or disapprove reports of the Board of Directors, 

Officers and any committees of CAST; 
d. To amend, waive or suspend these Bylaws by a favorable vote of a majority of the 

quorum at any duly called meeting; 
e. To designate the number of Directors with the exception that there shall be no less 

than Five (5) Directors. 
 
 Section 2: Participating Members may adopt resolutions for the guidance and direction of 

CAST at any annual or special meeting; 
 
 
ARTICLE 10: MEMBER’S MEETINGS AND VOTING 
 
 Section 1: Annual Meetings 

  The regular annual meeting of all Participating Members shall be held in Jaunary at the 
same date and location of the annual Colorado Municipal League conference, unless otherwise 



 

Page 8 of 18 

determined and directed by the Board of Directors.  The exact date and time shall be as 
determined by the Board of Directors.  Notices of such meeting may be sent by mail or 
electronically.  Notices sent electronically shall be deemed given when sent. 

 
 Section 2: Special Meetings 
  Special meetings of the Participating Members may be called: 

a. by any officer of CAST; or 
b. upon receipt by the Executive Director of written request by three (3) 

Participating Members, which written request shall include the purposes of the 
special meeting. 

  After setting of the special meeting date with approval from the President of CAST, the 
Executive Director shall send written notice to all Participating Members, which notice shall 
state the date, time, location and purposes of the special meeting.  Such notice shall be sent first 
class mail, postage prepaid, or electronically, to all Participating Members postmarked no less 
than fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the special meeting.  Failure of any Participating 
Member to receive such notice shall not invalidate any action taken at such meeting. 

 
 Section 3: Quorum 

  The presence at any regular, annual or special meeting of a majority (Fifty Percent plus 
one) of Participating Members in good standing at the time of the meeting, shall constitute a 
quorum for the conduct of business. 

 
 Section 4: Voting 

  Only Participating Members, through their designated voting representative as provided 
in Article 7, Section 7 4 above, in good standing may vote on the business and affairs of CAST.  
Each Participating Members in good standing shall be entitled to one vote cast by one designated 
voting representative.   

  
 Section 5: Proxy Voting 
  Voting by proxy is not permitted. 
 
 Section 6: Meetings by Telecommunications Electronic Means 

  Meetings might be held by electronic means. A member participating in a meeting by this 
means is deemed to be present at the meeting. Any or all Participating Members, through their 
designated representative, may participate in an annual, regular or special meeting of the 
Participating Members by, or the meeting may be conducted through the use of, any means of 
communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may hear each other during the 
meeting.  A member participating in a meeting by this means is deemed to be present at the 
meeting. 

 
 Section 7: Action by Written Ballot 

  The Board of Directors may authorize from time to time that action that may be taken at a 
regular, annual or special meeting of Participating Members be taken without a meeting by 



 

Page 9 of 18 

written ballot pursuant to the Colorado Revised Non-profit Corporation Act.  If the Board of 
Directors does not authorize such written ballots, then none shall be allowed.  If so authorized, 
such written ballots may be delivered and received by mail or electronically. 

 
  
 
 
ARTICLE 11: DIRECTORS 
 

Section 1.  Members and Qualifications 
 The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by a board of directors 
which shall exercise all the powers of the corporation, except as otherwise provided by the laws 
of the State of Colorado or by the Articles of Incorporation. The directors shall be designated 
representatives of the town or city so representing. The board of the directors shall consist of 
both elected officials and non-elected chief administrators of the entity with a minimum of two 
of the directors to be represented by an elected official.  Neither the Executive Director nor any 
paid employee of CAST shall be a director. 

 
Section 2.  Number of Directors 
 The number of directors of this corporation shall be no less than five (5) nor more than 
eleven (11) individuals, but always an odd number. The number of directors may be increased or 
decreased (but in no event shall the number of directors be less than five (5)) from time to time 
by amendment of these Bylaws, and no decrease shall have the effect of shortening the term of 
any incumbent director.  
 
Section 3:  Powers and Duties 
 The powers and duties of the Board of Directors shall include: 

a. The authority to accept property and interests in property; 
b. The authority to retain any necessary staff, employees or contractors to 

accomplish the purposes and objectives of CAST as expressed in the Articles of 
Incorporation and these Bylaws; 

c. All General Powers and Emergency Powers as provided in Colorado Revised 
Statutes, Sections 7-123-102 and 103, as amended. 

 
Section 4: Election and Staggered Terms 
 Directors shall be elected by Participating Members. at the annual meeting of 
Participating Members.  Commencing at the 2010 annual meeting of Participating Members at 
which these Amended and Restated Bylaws are duly adopted, an election of directors shall be 
held at which three of the directorships shall be for two year terms, and the remaining two of the 
directorships shall be for a one year term until the next annual meeting of Participating Members.  
Thereafter all directors shall be elected for two year terms, and until their successors are elected.  
Election of Directors shall be determined by a written ballot and election results approved by 
voice vote of a majority of the quorum of the Voting Representatives at the annual meeting, after 



 

Page 10 of 18 

oral nominations have been made at the annual meeting, unless a majority of the quorum demand 
that such election be held by written ballot. Alternatively, at the discretion of the sitting 
Directors, the election may be conducted electronically following a two-week candidate 
nomination period and allowing at least two weeks for submission of votes by the Voting 
Representatives. The candidates receiving the highest number of votes, up to the number of 
directors to be elected, shall be so elected. 

 
Section 5. Vacancy 
 Any vacancy occurring in the board of directors may be filled by affirmative majority 
vote of the remaining directors. The term of a director elected by the remaining directors to fill a 
vacancy expires at the end of the unexpired term that such director is filling.  

 
Section 6. Removal 
 At a regular, annual or special meeting of Participating Members called expressly for that 
purpose, a director may be removed with or without cause, by a majority vote of the quorum. 

 
Section 7. Quorum 
 A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The 
act of a majority of the directors present at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the 
board of directors. If a vote of a greater number is required for a specific act by the Articles of 
Incorporation, or by another provision of these Bylaws, or by the laws of the State of Colorado, 
then that greater number shall govern.  If a quorum is not present, a smaller number may adjourn 
from time to time, at a designed time, without further notice until a quorum is present. 

 
Section 8.  Annual Meeting 
 The annual meeting of the directors shall be held in advance at the same location and date 
of the annual meeting of Participating Members, and at such time as the Board of Directors shall 
determine. 

 
Section 9.  Special Meetings 
 Special Meetings of the board of directors maybe called at any time by or at the request 
of the President, Vice-president or any three members of the Board of Directors. Notice of the 
time and place of holding of said special meeting of the board of directors, and of the purpose for 
the special meeting, shall be given to each director by electronic mail effective upon sending, or 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, deposited in the United States Mail, either means of 
notice given at least ten (10) days prior to the date of said special meeting. Attendance of a 
director at said special meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such special meeting, except 
where a director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any 
business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  

 
 Section 10: Meetings by Telecommunications Electronic Means 

  Any or all Directors may participate in an annual, regular or special meeting of the Board 
of Directors by, or the.  The meeting which may be conducted in-person or through electronic 
means.the use of, any means of communication by which all persons participating in the meeting 



 

Page 11 of 18 

may hear each other during the meeting.  A director participating in a meeting by this electronic 
means is deemed to be present at the meeting. 

 
 Section 11: Action without Meeting 

  
Any action required or permitted to be taken at a board of director’s meeting may be 

taken without a meeting if a notice stating the action to be taken and the time by which a director 
must respond is transmitted in writing (by mail or electronically) to each member of the board, 
and each member of the board, by the time stated on the notice: 

a) votes in writing (by mail or electronically) for such action; OR 
b) i)  votes in writing (by mail or electronically) against such action, abstains in 

writing (by mail or electronically) from voting, or fails to respond or vote; AND 
ii) fails to demand that action not be taken without a meeting. 

c) Action is taken under this Section 11 only if the affirmative votes for such action 
equals or exceeds the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to take 
such action at a meeting at which all the directors then in office were present and 
voted. 

 
No action taken pursuant to this Section shall be effective unless writings describing the action 
taken and otherwise satisfying the above requirements, signed by the approving directors, are 
received by the Association Participating Members.  Such writings may be received and signed 
by electronically transmitted means facsimile or other form of wire or wireless communications 
providing the Association Participating Members with a complete copy of the document, 
including a copy of the signature on the document.   

 
Action so taken shall be effective, unless stated to the contrary in said document, when the last 
writing necessary to effect the action is received by the AssociationParticipating Members. 

 
All such documents or writing so approved shall be filed in the Minutes of the 
AssociationCorporation. 

 
Action taken pursuant to this Section has the same effect as action taken at a meeting of directors 
and may be described as such in any document. 

 
 
Section 12: Waiver of Notice 
 Whenever any notice is required to be given to any director, a waiver thereof in writing 
signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before, at or after the time stated 
therein, shall be equivalent to the giving of such notice. 

 
 Section 13: Compensation of Directors 

  No director shall be paid, nor receive, compensation from CAST for his or hertheir 



 

Page 12 of 18 

service on the Board, but may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in connection 
with his or hertheir services to CAST, subject to prior approval of the Board.   The fact that a 
director may be compensated by the entity designating such director as a designated 
representative, shall not be a violation of this within restriction against compensation. 

 
 Section 14: Communications with Members 

  The Board of Directors shall cause provide copies of the Minutes and Proceedings of the 
Board of Directors, and Membership, meetings to Participating members on request. to be sent 
(by mail or electronically) to all members as soon as reasonably practicable after such meetings.  

 
Section 15.  Appointment of Officers and Executive Director 
 The directors shall appoint the officers of the corporation, including the Executive 
Director, for a one year term.  Other than the Executive Director, no other officer shall be 
compensated by CAST, except for expenses as may be approved by the Board of Directors.  
Such appointment of officers shall be made at the annual  January Directors’ meeting. An 
officer, including the Executive Director, may be removed at any time, with or without cause 
except as may be limited by any contracts entered into with the Executive Director, by a majority 
vote of the directors present at any regular or special meeting of said board of directors at which 
a quorum is present. The board of directors shall have the power to fill officer vacancies, create 
new officer positions and set/adjust compensation of the Executive Director as said board from 
time to time shall deem necessary, all in accordance with these Bylaws. 

 
Section 16.  Annual Financial Report 
 At each annual directors meeting, a statement of business done during the preceding year 
shall be submitted, together with a report of the general financial condition of CAST, and of the 
condition of its tangible property shall be submitted. 

 
 Section 17. Director Conflict of Interest Transactions   

  A conflict of interest transaction means a contract, transaction or other financial relationship 
between the corporation and a director of the corporation, or a party related to the director of the 
corporation, or an entity in which the director is a director, officer or has a financial interest. 

 
 No loans shall be made by the corporation to its directors or officers.  Any director or officer 
who assents to or participates in the making of any such loan shall be liable to the corporation for 
the amount of such loan until the repayment thereof. 

 
 No conflict of interest transaction shall be void or voidable or be enjoined, set aside, or give 
rise to an award of damages or other sanctions in a proceeding by a member or by or in the right of 
the corporation, solely because the conflicting interest transaction involves a director of the 
corporation or a party related to a director of the corporation, or an entity in which a director of the 
corporation is a director or officer or has a financial interest or solely because the director is present 
at or participates in the meeting of the corporation's board of directors or of the committee of the 



 

Page 13 of 18 

board of directors that authorizes, approves, or ratifies the conflicting interest transaction or solely 
because the director's vote is counted for such purposes if: 

 a. The material facts as to the director's relationship or interest and as to the conflicting 
interest transaction are disclosed or are known to the board of directors or the committee, 
and the board of directors or committee in good faith authorizes, approves, or ratifies the 
conflicting interest transaction by the affirmative vote of a majority of the disinterested 
directors, even though the disinterested directors are less than a quorum; or 

  b. The conflicting interest transaction is fair to the corporation. 
 

 Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at 
a meeting of the board of directors or of a committee which authorizes, approves, or ratifies the 
conflicting interest transaction. 

   
 A "party related to a director" shall mean a spouse, a descendant, an ancestor, a sibling, the 
spouse or descendent of a sibling, an estate or trust in which the director or a party related or a 
director has a beneficial interest, or an entity in which the party related to a director is a director, 
officer or has a financial interest. 

 
 
ARTICLE 12: OFFICERS 
 Section 1.  Officers 

 The officers of this corporation shall consist of a President, Vice-President, 
Secretary/Treasurer, two Members at Large (elected or non-elected as described below),  and an 
Executive Director.  The Secretary/Treasurer may be one person.   

 
Section 2.  President 
 The President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation. The President shall 
preside at all directors’ and members’ meetings and shall have general supervision over the 
affairs of the corporation and over the other officers; may sign all written contracts of the 
corporation (the Executive Director also has this authority); and shall perform all such duties as 
are incident to his or hertheir office or as are assigned to him or herthem from time to time by 
resolution of the board of directors.  

 
Section 3.  Vice-President 
 If there is an individual serving the corporation in the office of Vice-President, then said 
individual, as Vice-President, shall have authority in the absence or disability of the President, to 
perform the duties of the President, as the President or the board of directors shall from time to 
time prescribe.  
 
Section 4.  Secretary/Treasurer 
 If there is an individual serving the corporation in the office of Secretary/Treasurer, then 
said individual shall issue notice of meetings and shall attend and keep the minutes of the same; 
shall have charge of all corporate books, records and papers; shall be custodian of the corporate 



 

Page 14 of 18 

seal; shall attest with his or hertheir signature and may, if required, impress with the corporate 
seal, all written contracts of the corporation; shall have custody of all monies and securities of 
the corporation; he or shethey shall keep regular books of account and shall submit them, 
together with all his or hertheir vouchers, receipts and other papers, to the directors for their 
examination and approval as often as they the directors may require, prepare and provide an 
annual financial report to the Board of Directors and Participating Members’ annual meetings; 
and shall perform all such other duties as are incident to his or hertheir office.  The Directors 
may delegate one or more of these duties to the Executive Director.   

 
 Section 5: Members-at-Large 

  The two “Members-at-Large” may be elected officials of the governing body of their 
respective Participating Members, or may be the non-elected chief administratorrepresentativ 
designee of their respective Participating Member, or a combination of both.   The two 
Members-at-large shall not be from the same Participating Member. The duties and 
responsibilities of the Members-at-Large shall be as determined from time to time by the Board 
of Directors. 

 
 
 Section 6. Executive Director 

  The Executive Director shall be the chief operating officer of the corporation and, subject 
to the control of the Board of Directors, have overall responsibility for the routine management 
of the affairs of the corporation.  The Executive Director shall report to the Board of Directors 
and shall work closely with the President of the corporation.  Duties of the Executive Director 
shall be determined by the Board of Directors. 

 
  The Executive Director may not be any other officer nor a Director.  All other officers 
may also be Directors. 

 
 
ARTICLE 13:  FINANCE 
 

The funds of the corporation shall be deposited in such bank or banks as the directors shall 
designate, and shall be withdrawn only upon the check or order of the any one of the President, Vice-
President, Executive Director, Secretary/Treasurer, or other authorized officer or designee of the 
corporation. 
 
 
ARTICLE 14: COMMITTEES  
 
 Section 1: Conditions and Existence 

  The Board of Directors may from time to time establish and abolish committees, and by 
resolution establish their purposes and the members thereof.   

 
 Section 2: Organization 



 

Page 15 of 18 

  Each committee shall elect its own President and Vice-President, for one year terms or 
until the committee is abolished, whichever is earlier.  The Executive Director shall be a non-
voting member of each committee.  Each committee shall hold meetings at such times and places 
as it determines, with approval of the Board of Directors. 

 
 
ARTICLE 15:  INDEMNIFICATION 
 
 The following provisions are inserted as notice of the specific intent of the Corporation concerning 
the management of the business and the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation, and the same are in 
furtherance of, and not limitation or exclusion of, the powers conferred by the laws of the State of Colorado. 
 
 Section 1: Indemnification of Officers, Directors, Employees and Agents   
  The board of directors of the Corporation shall have the power to: 
 
  1.  Indemnify any person who was, is, or is threatened to be made, a party to any threatened, 

pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or 
investigative (other than an action, by or in the right of the Corporation), by reason of the 
fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation or is or 
was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee, or agent of 
another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses 
(including attorney's fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and 
reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he or 
she conducted himself or herself in good faith and he or she reasonably believed (in the case 
of conduct in his or her official capacity with the Corporation) that his or her conduct was in 
the Corporation's best interests or (in all other cases) that his or her conduct was at least not 
opposed to the Corporation's best interests and, with respect to any criminal action or 
proceeding, he or she had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.  
The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction or upon a 
plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent is not of itself determinative that the individual did 
not meet the standard of conduct set forth herein.  No indemnification shall be made in 
connection with a proceeding by or in the right of the Corporation in which the director was 
adjudged liable to the Corporation or in connection with any proceeding charging improper 
personal benefit to the director, officer, employee, or agent whether or not involving action 
in his or her official capacity, in which he or she was adjudged liable on the basis that 
personal benefit was improperly received by him or her unless and only to the extent that a 
court of competent jurisdiction determines upon application that the director, officer, 
employee, or agent is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification in view of all the 
relevant circumstances. 

 
  2.  Indemnify a person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the 

Corporation and who was wholly successful on the merits or otherwise, in defense of any 



 

Page 16 of 18 

proceeding to which he or she was a party, against reasonable expenses incurred by him or 
her in connection with the proceeding.  

 
  3.  Authorize indemnification under paragraph (a) of this Section in the specific case after a 

determination has been made that indemnification of the director, officer, employee, or 
agent is permissible in the circumstances because he or she has met the standard of conduct 
set forth in paragraph (a) of this Section.  Such determination shall be made by the board of 
directors by a majority vote of a quorum, which quorum shall consist of directors not parties 
to the proceeding.  If a quorum cannot be not obtained, such determination shall be made by 
a majority vote of a committee of the board designated by the board, which committee shall 
consist of two or more directors not parties to the proceeding except that directors who are 
parties to the proceeding may participate in the designation of directors for the committee.  
If the quorum cannot be obtained or the committee cannot be established as hereinabove 
provided or even if a quorum is obtained or a committee designated, if such quorum or 
committee so directs, the determination shall be made by independent legal counsel selected 
by a vote of the board of directors or the committee in the manner hereinabove specified or, 
if a quorum of the full board cannot be obtained and a committee cannot be established, by 
independent legal counsel selected by a majority vote of the full board; or by the members. 

 
  4.  Authorize the indemnification of and evaluate the reasonableness of expenses (including 

attorney's fees) in the same manner as the determination that indemnification is permissible; 
except that if the determination that indemnification is permissible is made by independent 
legal counsel, authorization of indemnification and evaluation of reasonableness of expenses 
shall be made by the body that selected said counsel.     

 
  5.  Authorize payment of expenses (including attorney's fees) incurred by a director, officer, 

agent or employee in defending a civil or criminal action or proceeding in advance of the 
final disposition of the same if the director, officer, employee or agent furnishes the 
Corporation a written affirmation of his or her good faith belief that he or she has met the 
standard of conduct described in paragraph (a) of this section, furnishes the Corporation a 
written undertaking, executed personally or on his or her behalf, to repay the advance if it is 
determined that he or she did not meet such standard of conduct, and a determination is 
made that the facts then known to those making the determination would not preclude 
indemnification hereunder.  Provided, the Corporation may indemnify and advance 
expenses pursuant to this paragraph to a greater extent if consistent with law and if provided 
for by resolution of the Corporation's members or directors or in a contract. 

 
  6.  Purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of an individual who is or was a director, 

officer, employee, fiduciary or agent of this Corporation and who is or was serving at the 
request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, fiduciary, or 
agent of any other foreign or domestic corporation, or of any partnership, joint venture, trust, 
other enterprise or employee benefit plan against any liability asserted against or incurred by 



 

Page 17 of 18 

him or her in any such capacity or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the 
Corporation would have the power to indemnify him or her against such liability under the 
provisions of this section. 

 
 Section 2: Liability of Directors 

 A director shall have no personal liability to the Corporation for monetary damages for 
breach of fiduciary duty as a director; except that a director shall be liable to the Corporation for 
monetary damages for (a) any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation, (b) acts or 
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, 
(c) any transaction from which the director directly or indirectly derived an unlawful or improper 
personal benefit, or (d) the approval of distributions in violation of Colorado Revised Statutes, 
Section 7-128-403, as amended. 

 
 
ARTICLE 16: EFFECTIVE DATE and AMENDMENTS 
 
  Section 1: Effective Date 

 These Bylaws shall become effective upon approval by a majority of the Board of 
Directors and by approval of two-thirds of all Participating Members voting at a regular, annual 
or special meeting duly called for such purpose. 

 
  Section 2: Amendments 

 These Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote at any regular, annual or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors, and a majority vote of the quorum at any regular, annual or 
special meeting of Participating Members voting thereat, provided that: 

a. The proposed Amendment shall have first been prepared in writing and 
 
 
submitted to the Participating Members by first class mail (postage prepaid) 
postmarked, or by electronic mail sent, on or before fourteen (14) days prior to a 
regular, annual or special meeting of Participating Members at which such 
Amendment is to be considered for approval; 

b. At such meeting, written copies  A copy of the proposed Amendment are given to 
the attendingwill be delivered via electronic means to Participating Members prior 
to discussion thereof. 

 
Section 3: Effective Date of Amendments 
 Unless stated to the contrary in such Amendments, all duly approved Amendments shall 
be effective immediately upon such approvals. 

   
 



 

Page 18 of 18 

 IN WITNESS WHEREAS, the above Fourth Restated and Amended Bylaws were adopted by 
the Board of Directors and Participating Members of COLORADO ASSOCIATION OF SKI TOWNS 
on ___________________, 20___. 
  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Secretary 


	Basalt Agenda Aug2023
	Attendee List-Basalt
	March Legis Meeting Minutes_3.2.23
	DRAFT Fourth Restated and Amended ByLaws_Redline-Aug2023

